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Gazetted a National Monument in 1992, the
Old Parliament House is a historical
landmark with a rich heritage and the seat of
Government since the colonial days. Built in
1826, it is of typical 19th century British
colonial architecture. It served many uses and
was the Parliament of Singapore until 1999
when the new Parliament Complex was
completed. Today, it has been restored and
transformed into a delightful multi-disciplinary
arts and heritage centre.

Back to the 50s

This elegant striking building by prominent
architect G. D. Coleman, is Singapore’s oldest
building. It has borne witness to the many
historical defining moments that has shaped
Singapore over the past century and more.

Originally built as a home for John Arygle
Maxwell, he never lived there but rented it to the Straits Settlement
government in 1827 as a court house. Over the years, it has also served as
storehouse, government offices and Parliament House.

The buildings had undergone a series of extensions and renovations over
these years. A decision was taken by the architects to restore the building to
the late 1950s layout. This was considered the most historically significant
period when the building was used as the Legislative Assembly and the
Parliament House.

Prior to restoration, research to ascertain the original design of the monument,
structural and foundation investigations and a thermographic survey to establish
the presence of rising dampness were carried out. On the whole, the monument

Restored frontage facing Hill Street

was in a good condition except for water penetration
and rising damp. Some sections of the timber roof
trusses were also termite-infested.

Uncovering the Gem

During restoration, the 3R principle and the
“Top-Down” approach were observed.
Incompatible additions and partition walls were
removed. Termite infested timber roof trusses
were repaired and replaced where necessary.
Facade ornamentation and detailing obscured
and damaged by layers of paint were stripped,
cleaned and repaired or replicated. Deteriorated
windows and doors were replaced with new ones
constructed following details found in the
archival drawings.

Interesting discoveries like the prison grilles at the
first storey and the embedded granite staircase at
the Annex leading to the river promenade were
kept as links to the past.

Thoughtful Adaptations

The Parliament Chamber, with its original furnishings and fittings, was fully
retained and restored as the concert chamber hall. New technology for
lighting and acoustics were skillfully incorporated so that the hall could
serve its new function effectively. The high volume space of the former
library was kept and put to good use as the Blackbox Theatre with a control
room sensitively added. Two floors at the tower were removed to reinstate
the double-volume space over the central atrium, which acted as a focal
point for the main building.

The result is a historical landmark sensitively restored and thoughtfully
transformed into an arts house steeped in heritage value, but with modern
edge under one roof.
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Architectural elements revealed at the tower;

the focal point of the main building

Visual art gallery

Interior of Annexe Block kept Original second storey staircase State of art - monument restored to its former splendour



A NATIONAL MONUMENT

Built in 1826 and gazetted as a National Monument in 1992 by the Preservation of
Monuments Board, Old Parliament House is the oldest govemment building and one of
the its most important landmarks in Singapore. Strategically positioned in the city, it last
functioned as Parliament House of Singapore until the new Parliament Complex was
completed in 1999,

HISTORY

Old Parliament House comprised the Main Building and the Annex. The Main Building
was built as a private mansion for Scottish merchant, John Arygle Maxwell in 1826. The
architect was George Drumgolde Coleman and it was executed in the typical layout of
the 19" century British Colonial Architecture. lts layout was formal and symmetrical with
generous porticos in the form of “pavilion temple front”. The Palladian fagcade is of
classical architectural openings and Corinthian columns. The classical design of door
and window openings formed a rhythm on the fagade.

The private mansion was completed in 1827 but John Arygle Maxwell never lived there.
Instead he rented it to the Straits Settlements government who tumed it into the first
Court House. In 1829, Maxwell sold it to 2 merchants. In 1841, Resident Councillor,
Thomas Church bought it through a public auction. It was later transferred to Governor
Boham & East India Company as Court House in 1842 and it remained as the Court
House until 1865.

In 1875, the Main Building became the Supreme Court. Colonial Engineer, Major J F A
McNair made alterations to the building which include scale of window and changes in
the roof form of the tower.

From 1901 to 1909, it further underwent major extensions to the Palladian. These
included double arch windows, change in roof forms - tower with parapet and pitch roof,
reconstruction of 2 courtrooms, the curve walls were demolished, a 3" level was added
at the elevation facing the elephant and with a clock and balustrade was added in lieu of
roof parapet. The Supreme Court occupied the building until 1939. The building
became semi-derelict functioning as a Govemment storehouse.

In 1912, a new Annex was built as a Civil District Court to cater to the needs of
additional functions of the Supreme Court.

After World War 11, it became the Department of Social Welfare. It became the New
Legislative Assembly in 1954 and extensive renovations were carried out to restore the
building to its pre-1901 facade incorporating modern features for contemporary needs.
PWD Architect, THH Hancock restored the building with large single arch window
openings and the balustrade at the roof became solid wall parapet. In 7 Jul 1954, Sir
John Fearns Nicoll, Governor & Commander-in-Chief declared the building as the
Assembly House.

In 1959, PAP was swom into office with 9 cabinet Ministers including Mr Lee Kuan Yew.
In 1965, it was renamed as Parliament House when Singapore became independent




and in 1966, the Public Works Department did some upgrading and renovation to the
buildings. Throughout the years from 1988 to 1990, the Parliament Chamber was
enlarged to accommodate more seats. There was also major upgrading of M&E
services included the provision of air conditioning to the buildings. While the Annex
functioned mainly as the recreation facilities, the Main Building functioned as the
Parliament House until the New Parliament Complex adjacent to the buildings was
completed in Aug 1999.

As a National Monument, Old Parliament House reflects a rich heritage that tracks its
role as the seat of Govemment since the colonial days. The development of Old
Parliament House from a private mansion to an important public monument, highlight the
changes in architectural form and function of the building over the years. It is
representative of the life and struggles of Singaporeans in Singapore history and the
road towards independence.
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